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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Next we go

          3  to the public session. We have three people who have

          4  signed up. If anybody wants to testify who has not

          5  signed up with one of these cards, they should do so

          6  immediately.

          7                 Glenn Pasanen, from the City Project.

          8                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Welcome,

         10  Glenn. Identify yourself for the record, please.

         11                 MR. PASANEN: Thank you, Mr. Acting

         12  Chair, and Council Members. I am Glenn Pasanen,

         13  Associate Director of City Project, a non-profit,

         14  non-partisan public policy organization. Thank you

         15  for the chance to testify today.

         16                 As you know, City Project released a

         17  comprehensive analysis of the City's new financial

         18  plan about a week ago, a copy is attached to my

         19  testimony. Today I simply want to highlight a few of

         20  the many concerns noted in our report.

         21                 To be brief, we referred to the

         22  Mayor's Plan as a "thin, petty and damaging

         23  document." It is thin in detail and in imagination,

         24  petty in its attack on public officials, and

         25  damaging to many of the Council's constituents. It
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          2  is a terrible first step in next year's budget

          3  process. It is another insult to the Council, and

          4  everybody else with an interest in a fair, effective

          5  budget.

          6                 Its crudeness, incidently, is

          7  compounded by the intimidating police presence here

          8  at City Hall. I hope we are not getting used to

          9  that.

         10                 Concrete barriers, patrol cars,

         11  trailer size police command centers from time to

         12  time, and a shabby basement entrance discourages

         13  public access and cheapen the budget process.

         14                 Once again the burden falls on the

         15  Council to develop a more rational and a more

         16  compassionate budget. We look forward to your going

         17  well beyond restorations to developing an

         18  alternative vision of the City's quality of life.

         19  The Speaker's focus on children and education that

         20  he has expressed recently is an excellent start.

         21                 Along with more than 25 colleagues in

         22  other organizations, we are preparing our annual

         23  Alter Budget agenda, and this year we intend to

         24  focus on an alternative to the Mayor's narrow

         25  definition of quality of life in New York City.
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          2                 This Preliminary Budget further

          3  illustrates the problems with the Mayor's

          4  definition. It expands the Police Department at the

          5  same time it squeezes every library in the City,

          6  smallest cultural organizations, and youth services

          7  serving a million youth. It spends capital money on

          8  the City's richest museums, but tells poor New

          9  Yorkers to look to food pantries for welfare

         10  assistance.

         11                 We know that the Council will

         12  continue to battle with the Administration for a

         13  humane, effective and legal social welfare policy.

         14  We hope, too, that you will consider a new jobs

         15  program and bring back last year's excellent Council

         16  plans for earned income tax credit and tax relief

         17  for those at the lowest income levels.

         18                 We hope you will reject the current

         19  four-year plan to take $900 million of the Expense

         20  Budget to fund sports stadiums.

         21                 We would also hope that you will

         22  revisit property tax reform and find some way to

         23  find relief for renters who represent over

         24  two-thirds of New Yorkers, and carry a heavier

         25  property tax burden than do owners.
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          2                 We hope you will reject the

          3  recommendations of the Mayor's Tax Reform Task

          4  Force, which is another insult to process and

          5  substance here at City Hall.

          6                 If you retain the Co-op Condo Tax

          7  Abatement, which we have raised some questions about

          8  in the past, as you know, we hope at the very least

          9  you will address the problems of equity and

         10  efficiency recently identified by the Independent

         11  Budget Office.

         12                 There is money for enhancements for

         13  larger vision of the quality of life in the City,

         14  and there is money for tax reform. Three years of

         15  surpluses prove this. The Council's Finance Division

         16  has proved it. We heard from the Comptroller's

         17  Office this morning that there may be an additional

         18  $170 million added to the surplus. We may have a

         19  surplus this year of $1.75 billion.

         20                 This Committee has noted quite

         21  accurately for years that the Administration

         22  seriously underestimates revenues.

         23                 The new tobacco settlement money is a

         24  special case. A great opportunity, there have been

         25  some good ideas expressed during the day today, and
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          2  we will look forward to your own plan for how to

          3  spend these dollars effectively and fairly.

          4                 So, in closing, we look forward with

          5  special interest this year to the Council's official

          6  response to this inadequate, inequitable preliminary

          7  budget, and we stand ready, along with our Alter

          8  Budget colleagues and others to help you develop a

          9  better budget for everybody in the state.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         12  Glenn.

         13                 Any questions?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask a

         15  question.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER:  Council

         17  Member Perkins.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman, and thank you, Glenn Pasanen, for your

         20  testimony and your very important report.

         21                 You make note of how the cuts are

         22  targeted at children, youth and community groups,

         23  and you make note, I believe, that this is an

         24  ongoing cut that seems to be taking place every

         25  year.
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          2                 I wonder if you could elaborate a

          3  little bit on some of these cuts that you feel are

          4  the most significant, and your alternative?

          5                 MR. PASANEN: Well, we think that the

          6  attack is here, among other things, on the Council

          7  itself.

          8                 In our report we point out that one

          9  can argue that the Mayor has made a kind of

         10  political spore out of your constituents, saying

         11  that the Council will put back these monies that had

         12  been cut. We did a study back in the fall on what

         13  the impact is of this failed negotiation, let's say,

         14  between the Council and the Mayor and it puts

         15  community-based organizations and the people they

         16  serve at a tremendous disadvantage.

         17                 We in fact are doing a follow-up of

         18  that study in October, as we sit here, not one of

         19  the 55 groups that we were in touch with has yet

         20  received any money for this year's programs. They

         21  have been promised the money, but in fact they

         22  don't, here the 1st of March, eight months into the

         23  Fiscal Year, they don't have the money.

         24                 As to which programs, youth services

         25  is far and away the program that was hit the worst.
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          2  For an Administration that says it is trying to help

          3  children and to create opportunity, it makes no

          4  sense to do that. The only explanation is that,

          5  again, it is some kind of political tactic. To me it

          6  requires the Council to pay too much attention to

          7  what is an important issue, but it prevents them, as

          8  I say in my testimony, from some of the larger

          9  issues that could be raised.

         10                 We have called these cuts penny-wise

         11  and pound foolish - anti-eviction efforts,

         12  preventive programs in social services, all prove,

         13  and there is plenty of evidence, that over the long

         14  term you save money. The decent thing to do, the

         15  efficient thing to do --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You also seem

         17  to suggest that the cuts are disproportionate to

         18  communities of color, or those agencies that service

         19  communities of color.

         20                 MR. PASANEN: Well, I think from what

         21  we know, you know perhaps even better, I am sure

         22  better than I, youth services represents hundreds of

         23  contracts for small community-based organizations.

         24                 The cultural programs that are

         25  funded, hundreds of groups, those are small groups
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          2  and those are groups that are primarily in

          3  communities of color and that is why we made that

          4  point in the report. It is self-evident.

          5                 The libraries program is perhaps a

          6  somewhat different game that is being played. We

          7  heard an explanation about private matching, which

          8  strikes me again as being beside the point. How many

          9  of us started our education in our local libraries?

         10  It's just fundamental to all communities and those

         11  communities that need help the most, why would you

         12  even consider doing that? It makes no sense.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         14  Council Member.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Pasanen.

         16                 Eliot Siede, of DC 37. Thank you for

         17  your patience. If you would like to identify

         18  yourself for the record, please.

         19                 MR. SIEDE: To the Committee, good

         20  afternoon.

         21                 My name is Eliot Seide, and I am the

         22  Deputy Administrator of District Council 37, AFSCME.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, on behalf of

         24  Administrator Lee Saunders, and the 125,000 members

         25  of District Council 37, who work in every City
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          2  agency, I want to thank the City Council for the

          3  opportunity to share our views on the Mayor's

          4  Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2000.

          5                 Since the day that Lee Saunders was

          6  appointed by Acting President Gerald McEntee, he and

          7  I have met with members of every local union and

          8  told them the same thing, it is a new day at

          9  District Council 37, and we will work ceaselessly to

         10  improve and protect the jobs and living standards of

         11  every member of DC 37.

         12                 We will do so because we believe that

         13  is what a union is supposed to do, and that

         14  improving the lives of our members, we are improving

         15  the lives of all New Yorkers.

         16                 It is because we believe so deeply in

         17  the work of the union that the Mayor's Preliminary

         18  Budget troubles me so much. There is little new in

         19  the Mayor's proposal. There are calls for tax cuts,

         20  the driving engine behind the budget gap that

         21  continue to appear in the outyears of the Financial

         22  Plan.

         23                 There are further reductions of

         24  full-time civilian staff in agencies like Parks,

         25  Transportation. There are calls for accelerating the
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          2  pace at which police officers are hired, while

          3  funding for libraries and cultural institutions and

          4  programs are ravaged.

          5                 There are calls for reducing Medicaid

          6  benefits so that the City can have the funds to

          7  retain companies who threaten to flee the City while

          8  building minor league baseball stadiums.

          9                 The Mayor's priorities as articulated

         10  in his Preliminary Budget are not District Council

         11  37's priorities, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 In the time remaining, I would like

         13  to sketch out what some of the unions' priorities

         14  are, and how they could be paid for.

         15                 Priority 1, jobs, jobs, jobs. The

         16  City civilian workforce, after accounting for all of

         17  the mergers and transfers has fallen by 16.3 percent

         18  since December of 1993.

         19                 The erosion of full-time physicians

         20  in agencies like social and homeless services,

         21  health and parks cannot continue.

         22                 Moreover, supplanting full-time

         23  workers with welfare recipients will no longer be

         24  tolerated by this union.

         25                 As you may be aware, DC 37 filed a
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          2  suit against the City's use of welfare recipients as

          3  replacements for full-time workers in the Parks

          4  Department.

          5                 There will be more such suits until

          6  the City moves to address the most important reason

          7  for poverty: The lack of full-time jobs with pay and

          8  benefits that allow a worker to rise above poverty,

          9  and I would add, to live with dignity.

         10                 Let's face it, the unemployment rate

         11  in New York City is the highest among the nation's

         12  20 metropolitan areas. If we are ever to end welfare

         13  as we know it, the time is now. The solution begins

         14  with the creation of 3,000 useful public sector jobs

         15  in agencies that have been decimated over the past

         16  five years. How do you pay for 3,000 jobs? Well, the

         17  City should take the $100 million the Mayor has

         18  included in his Preliminary Budget for unspecified

         19  tax reduction, as well as the annual savings from

         20  fully civilianizing the Police Department, to create

         21  3,000 useful public sector jobs in agencies that

         22  have been decimated over the last five years.

         23                 Number two, civilianization. The

         24  recently released report by the City Comptroller

         25  makes plain what we have known for years: too many
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          2  uniformed officers are performing jobs that can and

          3  should be done by civilian workers.

          4                 The Comptroller estimates that there

          5  are 1,257 positions that could be civilianized

          6  without reducing a uniformed police presence on the

          7  streets of the City. The annualized savings of $36.2

          8  million to be achieved through attrition over a

          9  three-year period.

         10                 The time is not for more studies but

         11  for the City to do what is right: combat crime in

         12  the most efficient way possible.  This solution

         13  should not be applied only to the New York Police

         14  Department. The City's other uniformed agencies

         15  should be examined as well, to make sure that the

         16  City provides Fire, Correction and Sanitation

         17  services in the most efficient way possible.

         18                 3) Our Health and Hospitals

         19  Corporation: Despite the Mayor's best efforts, the

         20  HHC is still here, Mr. Chairman. This is true

         21  because more and more uninsured New Yorkers need its

         22  services. Instead of reacting to that by adding to

         23  the HHC budget, the Administration proposes just the

         24  opposite.

         25                 The cuts are getting smaller because
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          2  the City no longer subsidizes HHC at all. So, all

          3  that was left to cut is the $5 million the City

          4  Council added to the budget last year.

          5                 To add insult to injury, the

          6  Administration eliminated funding to pay for

          7  collective bargaining increases in HHC.

          8                 We propose that collective bargaining

          9  funds be restored to the HHC, and all over covered

         10  agencies that had funds eliminated, and that the

         11  City set a subsidy of $100 million to the

         12  Corporation in Fiscal Year 2000.

         13                 The subsidy shall increase each year

         14  thereafter by the health care inflation rate. The

         15  funds for the subsidy can be found in the Mayor's

         16  call for a dedicated portion of the commercial rent

         17  tax to be used to build a number of stadiums

         18  throughout the City.

         19                 The Mayor proposes to spend $96

         20  million for this purpose in Fiscal Year 2000,

         21  growing to $194 million in Fiscal Year 2001, $289

         22  million in Fiscal Year 2002, and $303 million in

         23  Fiscal Year 2003.

         24                 We also believe that in order to make

         25  HHC viable in the long-term, a portion of the funds
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          2  the City will receive as part of the tobacco

          3  settlement be used for the construction of primary

          4  care centers in all five boroughs.

          5                 There are other issues of concern to

          6  DC 37, and as the budget process unfolds we will be

          7  contacting each and every member of this City

          8  Council about what DC 37's issues are.

          9                 Our priorities as outlined here are

         10  clear, Mr. Chairman, and members: It is time to

         11  revive New York City's public sector. We will need

         12  your support in doing so.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Seide.

         16                 Council Member Boyland.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         18  few questions, well actually a lot of questions.

         19                 First of all, on HHC, I know we are

         20  working with you now, we are dealing with the

         21  Central Laundry in Brooklyn and we are trying to

         22  fight that battle and it is looking like the cuts

         23  are coming very quickly for DC 37.

         24                 Just do some expansion of it, first

         25  let's go to the police chief. Can you go over that
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          2  briefly for me?

          3                 You said with the civilian department

          4  to create 3,000 useful public sector jobs in

          5  agencies that have been decimated over the last five

          6  years; can you explain that in more detail to me in

          7  terms of what you mean?

          8                 MR. SEIDE: I should have introduced

          9  my colleague at the outset.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         11                 MR. SEIDE: Dennis Sullivan, who is

         12  Deputy Administrator and Director of Research and

         13  Collective Bargaining, and Mike Musuraca, who is our

         14  Assistant Director of Research and one of our

         15  economists, I would like them to further expand on

         16  this issue.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Sure.

         18                 MR. MUSURACA: Council Member Boyland,

         19  as I am sure you are aware, the City Comptroller has

         20  come out recently with a very conservative analysis,

         21  one that is quite compelling, that the utilization

         22  of resources in the New York City Police Department

         23  is not what it could be and clearly not what it

         24  should be. The have identified 1,257 positions,

         25  positions which are mostly clerical, then there are
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          2  blue collar positions, there are white collar

          3  positions, in terms of computer personnel, that

          4  could be civilianized in the Police Department.

          5  Without any effect on patrol strength, in fact

          6  through attrition over a year or two, savings of tax

          7  levy money could be reappropriated from the New York

          8  City Police Department to fund other agencies with

          9  tax levy support to provide personal services, jobs,

         10  positions, in parks, in transportation, in highways,

         11  that is what we believe is a better utilization of

         12  the City's resources in the budget process and that

         13  is why we are making such a strong point in this

         14  area.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Also, I

         16  agree with your recommendation on the tobacco

         17  settlement piece, but I also wish you would put in

         18  that we do a lot more research in minority

         19  communities with asthma and things like that,

         20  because your health care, a few of your health care

         21  workers have come over to me wondering about certain

         22  disparities in funding sources, in terms of in

         23  minority communities, prostate cancer and those

         24  things, so if you can add that in.

         25                 I think that is all. Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Boyland.

          5                 Council Member Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          7                 Let me ask a question that relates to

          8  jobs, which seems to be thankfully the focus of your

          9  testimony. At one time you had a lot of jobs, or a

         10  lot more jobs than you have now, and for one reason

         11  or another, through jobs, through redeployment,

         12  retirement, as well as lay-offs, the DC 37

         13  workforce, if you will, has shrunk.

         14                 Where are we at now? How many members

         15  are within DC 37 now?

         16                 MR. SULLIVAN: We have approximately

         17  125,000 members. In the City civilian workforce,

         18  what do we have, Mike, about 80?

         19                 MR. MUSURACA: About 80,000.

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN: We have about 80,000

         21  civilian workers represented by District Council 37

         22  in Mayoral and non-Mayoral agencies.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And where

         24  were you at, let's say four years ago?  Or at your

         25  height?
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          2                 MR. SULLIVAN: In excess of 100,000

          3  members in City tax levy positions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you have

          5  lost 20,000 so-to-speak?

          6                 MR. SULLIVAN: That's correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And how many

          8  would you say you lost through layoffs?

          9                 MR. SULLIVAN: Well, we actually have

         10  lost to date, probably under the previous

         11  administration we might have lots 3,000. We got some

         12  of those positions back. We recently just lost

         13  another 600 in the Health and Hospital Corporation,

         14  about 400 are outstanding.

         15                 What has happened, there have not

         16  been layoffs that have resulted in the lost

         17  positions. It has been severance programs, early

         18  retirement programs, because if you recall in 1994

         19  when this Mayor took office, there was a very severe

         20  fiscal problem. The unions, particularly District

         21  Council 37, cooperated in transitional funding. In

         22  other words, we did a few things, not the least of

         23  which was attrition and downsizing, that based on

         24  what we understood the situation to be, which was

         25  that in tough times the unions would contribute. We
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          2  did contribute, several thousands of our members

          3  left the payroll, but now when we are in the boom

          4  years of surpluses and tax cuts that create outyear

          5  budget gaps, we haven't shared.

          6                 On other point that I would bring to

          7  the Council Member's attention, is that it is not as

          8  if the City doesn't have people doing the work that

          9  used to get done, like the Mayor likes to say. He

         10  has a contingent workforce of probably in excess of

         11  25,000 workfare participants, plus he has a shadow

         12  workforce of about 8,000 per diem employees who

         13  don't get the full rights and benefits of a

         14  full-time employee, but they are just that, except

         15  they are not included in that sacred measurement of

         16  productivity, and that is headcount. They are hidden

         17  underneath the budget line.

         18                 So, the issue for us is, now is the

         19  time to reinvigorate public services where you can.

         20  There are, as we have tried to point out, ways that

         21  you can do it, and we are hoping for the Council's

         22  support in those areas.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, I am

         24  hopeful for that support as well. I had problems

         25  with the layoffs, and especially from the
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          2  perspective of the fact that so many of them were

          3  coming from communities of color.

          4                 Do you have any numbers in that

          5  regard? Like what is the sort of demographic

          6  breakdown in terms of the 20,000?

          7                 MR. SULLIVAN: Not that I can share

          8  with you now, but we will provide what we have.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And, you are

         10  focusing primarily on civilianization it appears,

         11  which accounts for about 3,000 jobs from your

         12  analysis. What agencies, what mayoral agencies or

         13  non-mayoral agencies got the biggest hit?

         14                 MR. SULLIVAN: The Parks Department.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The Parks

         16  Department.

         17                 MR. SULLIVAN: The Department of

         18  Transportation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The DOT?

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN: Social services.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         22                 MR. SULLIVAN: Homeless services. The

         23  Department of Citywide Administrative Services,

         24  custodial employees, employees who work in every

         25  City agency to provide support, those would be the
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          2  biggest impacts.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And the

          4  20,000 -- let's assume this year it happens the way

          5  you want it to happen, how many would you estimate

          6  would come back?

          7                 MR. SULLIVAN: Twenty-thousand.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You mean

          9  there are 20,000 people out there sitting around

         10  waiting to come back to work and get back involved

         11  with DC 37? That's a lot of votes, you know. That's

         12  a lot of people.

         13                 MR. SEIDE: Our proposal in the

         14  testimony is that we try to create a program for

         15  3,000 new jobs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But the need

         17  is so much greater.

         18                 MR. SEIDE: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That is why I

         20  am concerned that we are only asking, that you are

         21  only looking at 3,000 jobs and you have 20,000 or

         22  more, not looking at the other unions that have also

         23  lost it would seem to me that there should be a

         24  greater push from all of you to sort of take a good

         25  look at this, but maybe I am not seeing it the way I
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          2  should be.

          3                 MR. SEIDE: We would be happy to work

          4  with you to find sources of revenue to pay for

          5  20,000 jobs,   Councilman. We would be very happy to

          6  work with you to do that.

          7                 We believe we try to, in this

          8  proposal, to account for dollars in the Mayor's

          9  budget that could fund positions. And also we wanted

         10  to raise the issue of tax cuts as the only way to

         11  increase jobs in the City. Right now, besides the

         12  budget, we are faced with a situation where there is

         13  a proposal to privatize the Brooklyn Central

         14  Laundry, and you asked the question about

         15  demographics, that is about 206 jobs I believe. Most

         16  of those folks reside in Brooklyn. I believe the

         17  economic impact on the City is about 8 million, and

         18  right now this community and other communities

         19  around the state and the nation are spending lots of

         20  the taxpayers' money trying to create jobs in

         21  communities, here we seem to be spending taxpayer

         22  monies to ship jobs right out of New York. And we

         23  have to wonder what kind of economic policy that is

         24  for New Yorkers to use New Yorkers tax dollars to

         25  ship jobs out of the City of New York.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: One final

          3  comment.

          4                 The thrust of the policy has been to

          5  suggest that there are too many public sector

          6  employees, that even if there was -- it is not a

          7  question of money being available, it is a question

          8  of whether or not this type of money should be used

          9  for this purpose or whether or not we so many people

         10  working for government, as opposed to competing with

         11  the private sector or some other notion like that.

         12  It is almost a question of socialism versus

         13  capitalism in the way sometimes it is put forward

         14  from the perspective of the Administration. So, I am

         15  just wondering, to you buy into that? Do you think

         16  that 20,000 more jobs are too many jobs, that all of

         17  the jobs that were laid off were too many or was it

         18  just from your point of view simply a matter of

         19  resources being available for jobs?

         20                 Because I suspect the money is there,

         21  it is just whether it's the political will to have

         22  that many people working is there?

         23                 MR. SEIDE: Well, clearly if you use

         24  as a barometer the per diems that I mentioned and

         25  the workfare participants, the workers are there,
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          2  they are not being recognized as workers. If you

          3  were to do an experiment --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you are

          5  talking about real workers, and workers, what might

          6  be considered a second class status?

          7                 MR. SEIDE: The jobs are there, the

          8  need for the jobs is there, the services need to be

          9  provided, they can't be provided and they are not

         10  being provided by the private sector.

         11                 If you were to do an experiment and

         12  remove all of this contingent workforce and let's

         13  see how the conditions of public services would be,

         14  let's see how clean the streets might be, let's see

         15  how clean the parks might be, let's see how the rec

         16  centers run.

         17                 The fact of the matter is that this

         18  is in effect somewhat of a charade being perpetrated

         19  on the public because the jobs are really still

         20  there, they are being performed, but they are not

         21  being performed by individuals who are civil service

         22  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And the need

         24  for the jobs is still there.

         25                 MR. SEIDE: The need is clearly there.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: See, one of

          3  the things that I would hope the labor would do for

          4  us is to say that and to share that reality. Because

          5  you have to understand the quote, propaganda, says

          6  otherwise, and that it is not needed and it is what

          7  cripples our economy, what cripples our City and so

          8  therefore, the general public says then lay them off

          9  if it is crippling our City. Do you understand what

         10  I am saying?

         11                 MR. SEIDE: Absolutely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Whereas, if

         13  there is no counter analysis or counter voice that

         14  says hold it, hold it, hold it, this is not

         15  necessarily the way it is, that there is a need,

         16  that our City is not crippled, in fact, quite

         17  frankly just the opposite is taking place, by laying

         18  off all of these workers and hiring these per diems

         19  and WEP workers you are not having the services

         20  performed at the level that they need to be and in

         21  fact the money is available anyway.

         22                 MR. SEIDE: Well, we don't believe we

         23  need sort of a mini version of trickle down

         24  economics here. You need to invest in a city and an

         25  area, you need to invest in the infrastructure, you
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          2  need to invest in the quality of life that

          3  businesses are attracted to a place that has a sound

          4  infrastructure, if that is transportation, if that

          5  is a good quality of life in terms of parks and

          6  cultural institutions, in terms of libraries, that

          7  type of infrastructure needs to be built up and kept

          8  up, and businesses recognize that as an effective

          9  way to attract new jobs and new industries, and I

         10  think we need to be looking at investment in the

         11  public infrastructure as a way of attracting new

         12  jobs and attracting new investment instead of

         13  decapitalizing the public infrastructure which will

         14  not result, we don't believe, in new jobs, but will

         15  result in tax expenditures for those who need it the

         16  least.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Yes, thank

         19  you, Council Member.

         20                 Maybe I missed it, but do you have

         21  any analysis on how many per diems you think -- and

         22  what the cost of the per diems are in the entire

         23  City workforce, or not in the workforce?

         24                 MR. SULLIVAN: We have done an

         25  analysis of the per diems that are in positions that
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          2  are represented by District Council 37. We estimate

          3  that number to be around 8,000 per diems.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER:

          5  Eight-thousand per diems, on any give day or is that

          6  a regular --

          7                 MR. SULLIVAN: On a regular basis.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: On a

          9  regular basis. So that is about 8,000 full-time, per

         10  diem workers.

         11                 MR. SULLIVAN: They may not all be

         12  full-time, but many of them are.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And they

         14  represent what you think is -- they just replaced

         15  full-time jobs. And how much does the City -- the

         16  City saves money on this because these people don't

         17  have full health care benefits?

         18                 MR. SULLIVAN: That's correct.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: So how

         20  much less is the City paying these people, less than

         21  what we would be paying if we were recognized --

         22                 MR. SULLIVAN: We are actually trying

         23  to find that out, because the City is not

         24  forthcoming, as I am sure the Council is aware, with

         25  information on a regular basis, so it is like
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          2  pulling teeth.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Really?

          4                 MR. SULLIVAN: But we are going

          5  through, because it varies from agency to agency.

          6  There is no standard policy that the City has on per

          7  diem. Some they provide a certain level of benefits,

          8  others is more --

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: And where

         10  are most of these workers?

         11                 MR. SULLIVAN: We think a great number

         12  of them are in the Department of Social Services,

         13  HRA. There are many in DCAS. But at this point I

         14  think the largest number would probably be in HRA,

         15  finance agencies where those are the ones that come

         16  to mind.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Okay.

         18                 So, the other areas that you

         19  mentioned, like the Parks Department, which I know

         20  is like at a third of its headcount from ten years

         21  ago I think it is.

         22                 MR. SULLIVAN: Just about that.

         23                 MR. SEIDE: Just about that.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: It's been

         25  obliterated.
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          2                 There aren't as many per diems there.

          3  That is where the workfare participants are picking

          4  up the --

          5                 MR. SULLIVAN: Big workfare

          6  population, as well as seasonals, which is seasonals

          7  that work, strangely enough, 11 months, 12 months a

          8  year. It's a very long season, but that's where they

          9  are.

         10                 Again, seasonals don't show up on the

         11  permanent headcount, they are hidden in a seasonal

         12  hiring plan. I am talking about employees that don't

         13  get the same level of benefits as a civil service

         14  public sector job.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Let me

         16  thank you for your testimony. I want to particularly

         17  thank you for the highlighting of the Health and

         18  Hospitals Corporation, which is an area of great

         19  concern to me. And I really think, HHC is not just

         20  an area of concern from my discussions with people

         21  in the health care industry to people in the public

         22  hospital system, it is also, it is a critical part

         23  of our entire health care delivery system.

         24                 I have an extraordinary number of

         25  hospitals in my district, because I represent the
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          2  east side, the Upper East Side, so I have, you know,

          3  bedpan alley there, plus two public hospitals on

          4  Roosevelt Island. And when I go and I talk to the

          5  heads of these hospitals, you know, the first

          6  question out of their mouths is what is happening

          7  with HHC, which just seems to be the

          8  Administration's position just to allow this thing

          9  to drift. There is no direction being given, and at

         10  a time when every other health care, you know, the

         11  trend in the health care system is to pursue mergers

         12  and to create economies of scale. We already have

         13  that in the Health and Hospitals Corporation, why

         14  would you want to sell it off, and they don't even

         15  appear to want to sell it off, they just say they

         16  want to sell it off because they don't want to come

         17  up with anything else to do, because they are not

         18  actually taking steps to sell it off in most cases.

         19                 So, I appreciate your attention to

         20  it, and thank you for your time.

         21                 MR. SEIDE: Thank you very much.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Joseph

         23  Vicinanza.

         24                 MR. VICINANZA: That's pretty good.

         25  That is better than Stanley Hill did.
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          2                 He calls me Joe V, and you can call

          3  me Joe.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: All right.

          5  But identify your full name for the record.

          6                 MR. VICINANZA: My name is Joseph

          7  Vicinanza, V-i-c-i-n-a-n-z-a. I am here, I don't

          8  have script in hand, I am here with 25 years of

          9  experience with the City of New York. I worked for

         10  the Police Department, the Department of Sanitation

         11  for 21 of the 25 years I am talking about. For four

         12  years, four and a half years I have been president

         13  of Local 1407. I represent accountants, actuaries,

         14  statisticians, management auditors, bookkeepers,

         15  statisticians, a lot of professional people. I find

         16  that a lot of politicians and a lot of people turn

         17  around and say accountability. But how can you have

         18  accountability when they are lowering the amount of

         19  auditors that are in different agencies? One in

         20  particular was the Board of Ed. They were going to

         21  lower the amount of people that were there, until I

         22  spoke to Chancellor Crew that it was unwise to turn

         23  around do that.

         24                 We need internal, "we" meaning the

         25  City of New York, need internal controls. Without
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          2  that, management and also employees are going to go

          3  amuck. I have hard certain atrocities that HHC

          4  bought video cameras, video equipment, stored them

          5  in a closet and then take them out two years later,

          6  it was very little accountability.

          7                 Internal audits is very key and

          8  critical for the City of New York, and it seems like

          9  when they downsize the City rolls, they downsize the

         10  amount of audits. The agency that I came from, the

         11  Department of Sanitation, they decimated the

         12  internal audits. I don't see how the City can

         13  account to the people of the City of New York by

         14  downsizing accountants, management orders, and

         15  professional people. I think they have to increase

         16  the size and the number of people. That is one

         17  issue.

         18                 The other issue is, our people are

         19  professionals, they are treated as professionals

         20  when it comes to time and leave, but they are not

         21  treated as professionals when it comes to pay.

         22                 I filed a number of grievances at the

         23  Department of Finance. The people are making $37,000

         24  a year on an average. These are tax auditors that

         25  are doing battle with corporate lawyers, CPA firms,
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          2  they are making $200,000 to $300,000 a year, and my

          3  tax auditors are only making 47, with longevity,

          4  $42,000 a year.

          5                 When you lower the budget, you, the

          6  Mayor of New York, who I supported, this local

          7  supported in his reelection, when he lowers the

          8  budget, it affects the ability of agency heads to

          9  give merit raises, discretionaries and what have

         10  you.

         11                 A lot of raises, a lot of

         12  discretionaries are being held up by the Vacancy

         13  Control Board. I have had people that got

         14  discouraged, six months they had been promised a

         15  level raise, from one to two, and that is money in

         16  their pockets, money that can go home and support

         17  their families, instead of having a second job or

         18  having their wife go to work or other means of

         19  support, these people have tightened their belt

         20  buckles, our people are accountants, all of the City

         21  workers, including management, have tightened their

         22  belt buckles. When the Mayor came to us and said we

         23  have no money to give you raises and we took double

         24  zeros the last time, and we took a year and a half

         25  without increases, the contract before. Our people
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          2  are hurting. They are hurting to the point where you

          3  can't attract professional people to come in and do

          4  a professional job that this City is entitled to do.

          5                 You talk about change orders. I have

          6  been involved with change orders, I have handled

          7  contracts, I have handled a lot of things. I have

          8  worked for the property clerk at the Police

          9  Department, I have handled change orders with the

         10  Department of Sanitation. I have seen construction,

         11  I have seen atrocities, it's a waste of money.

         12                 I have seen over at 25 Elm Place,

         13  they started a heating and ventilation system. It is

         14  supposed to take their vendors six weeks to

         15  complete. Instead of paying the vendor, they awarded

         16  a contractor that they knew owed the City tax

         17  dollars, all right? Instead of paying them they paid

         18  off the tax money that they owed, and the vendors

         19  could not pay the employees to complete the job.

         20  They walked off the job.

         21                 Meanwhile, we have six months of

         22  people that were supposed to be in temporary

         23  situations still there, a situation where they were

         24  only supposed to spend six weeks.

         25                 You walk over to the Department of
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          2  Health over at 253 Broadway over there, the working

          3  conditions of the employees over there are

          4  atrocious. They are working in very poor conditions.

          5                 To sum it all, they are lowering the

          6  budget, the City of New York lowering our bread and

          7  butter, okay? And lowering the abilities of the

          8  agency heads.  Give people some rewards. Thank you.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Thank you

         10  very much for your testimony. I appreciate you

         11  taking the time and your patience in waiting.

         12                 MR. VICINANZA: Can I say one more

         13  thing?

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: Please do.

         15                 MR. VICINANZA: The Department of

         16  Parks, with the amount of revenues that it has

         17  received from the City and the amount of revenues

         18  that it collects, there is one accountant, no

         19  bookkeepers, no auditors, no nothing, other than one

         20  accountant for the whole Parks Department.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: There is

         22  one accountant for the Parks Department?

         23                 MR. VICINANZA: One accountant. And I

         24  asked the Commissioner who is doing the accounting?

         25  He said staff analysts. I said, I don't know what
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          2  school you went to but the school I went to accounts

          3  handle accounting.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: That's

          5  amazing.

          6                 Thank you for that piece of

          7  information. We will see what we can do.

          8                 We have one last witness, Thomas

          9  McMahon, on behalf of Roosevelt Island.

         10                 MR. McMAHON: I will pass.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MILLER: All right.

         12  Thank you very much, Mr. McMahon, for your respect

         13  of the Committee's time.

         14                 I guess that concludes the Committee

         15  of Finance hearing today. The hearing today is

         16  closed.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 2:35 p.m.)
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